
CITY OF NORTH OAKS

Regular Natural Resources Commission Meeting
Thursday, November 18, 2021

7 PM, Community Meeting Room, 100 Village Center Drive
MEETING AGENDA

Remote Access  - Natural Resource Commission members will participate by telephone or other electronic
means pursuant to Minn. Stat. §13D.021. Any person wishing to monitor the meeting electronically
from a remote location may do so by calling the following Zoom meeting videoconference number:
1-312-626-6799, Webinar ID: 864 2724 6921 or by joining the meeting via the following link: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86427246921.  Due to the existing COVID-19 Health Pandemic, no more
than five (5) members of the public may be in Council Chambers (Community Room, 100 Village Center
Drive,  MN) during the meeting. Once room capacity is met, anyone wishing to attend the meeting
above the five (5) members of the public who may be present in the room during the meeting will be
required to monitor the meeting remotely.

1.  Call to Order

2.  Roll Call 

3.  Approval of Agenda

4.  Citizen Comments  - Members of the public are invited to make comments to the Commission during the
public comments section. Up to four minutes shall be allowed for each speaker. No action will be taken
by the Commission on items raised during the public comment period unless the item appears as an
agenda item for action.

5.  Approval of Previous Month's Minutes
Approval of October 21, 2021 Meeting Minutes

10.21.21 NRC Meeting Minutes - Draft.pdf

6.  Business Action Items
6a.Discussion on deer management and aerial studies

2021.11.04_North Oaks Deer Management Packet.pdf

6b.Discussion on lakes in North Oaks
Copy of table north oaks surface water data 20211107.xlsx

6c.Discussion on Wetland Ordinance

1

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1116052/10.21.21_NRC_Meeting_Minutes_-_Draft.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1142104/2021.11.04_North_Oaks_Deer_Management_Packet.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1142087/Copy_of_table_north_oaks_surface_water_data_20211107.pdf


Natural Resources Commission November 18, 2021

2

7.  Commissioner / Staff Reports  - 
- Tick  Task Force Report
- Community Outreach: Winsor Report
- NOHOA/ NEST Report
- City Forester Report
- VLAWMO Tech Report
- City Report
7a.Reports

Outreach report.pdf

City Forester Report - October 2021 In Review
October 2021 in Review.pdf

8.  Next Meeting: 

9.  Adjourn

2

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1142049/Outreach_report.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1143483/October_2021_in_Review.pdf


North Oaks Natural Resources Commission   
NRC Meeting Minutes   

Virtual Meeting via Teleconference or Electronic Means Only 
October 21, 2021 at 7 p.m.   

   
   

1. CALL TO ORDER    
Chair Hawkins called the meeting of October 21, 2021 to order at 7:00 p.m.    
   
2. ROLL CALL     
NRC members participated by telephone or other electronic means pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 
13D.021.    
   
Present: Chair Andrew Hawkins, Commissioners Shannon Dunn, Penny Kianian, Bob Larson, 
Damien Lepoutre, David White, Kate Winsor, City Council Liaisons James Hara, Tom 
Watson, NOHOA Liaison Patricia Orud 
 
Absent: None 
 
Staff Present: City Administrator Kevin Kress, City Forester Mark Rehder 
 
A quorum was declared present.    
  
3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA    
 
Chair Hawkins requested to add an update on the previous email communications on the 

feedback of the draft wetland ordinances as Business Action Item 6d. 
 
MOTION by Dunn, seconded by Winsor, to approve the agenda as amended.    
 
MOTION carried unanimously by roll call vote.   
   
4. CITIZEN COMMENTS   
None 
   
5. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MONTH’S MINUTES   
  
Commissioner Kianian asked that the notes be updated to clarify that the NOHOA tree policy 
applies to trees 6 inches in diameter or larger. 
 
MOTION by White, seconded by Larson, to approve the September 16, 2021 minutes as 
corrected. 
 
MOTION carried unanimously by roll call vote.   
   

3



6. BUSINESS ACTION ITEMS   
6a.  Discussion on Deer Management and Aerial Studies  

• Chair Hawkins asked Councilor Hara, the official Wildlife Manager for North 
Oaks, how things are going with the plan for an aerial count of deer, and is there 
anything NRC can do to help? 

• Councilor Hara said that an aerial count has not yet been scheduled because snow 
needs to be present and the timing of that is hard to predict. He has been hearing 
anecdotally that people in the community have been seeing fewer deer this year 
than in prior years. This aligns with feedback from the Trapper from last winter 
who also noted that there was not much activity in the traps.  

• Commissioner Lepoutre wondered if when an aerial deer survey is done this year, 
whether a photographic survey could also be completed of the area. This would be 
different from the deer survey because that is usually completed with a thermal 
camera. The benefit of a regular survey could be to create a base map of tree 
locations for both the City and NOHOA, among other things. He happened to speak 
to a company called Nearmap who does this kind of work. They already cover this 
area through work with Ramsey County, and they create images with 3-inch 
resolution. He is unsure if Ramsey County has a license to provide the images to 
cities, but this could also be a possible resource for this kind of survey.  

• Commissioner Winsor asked if there is money in the city budgeted for an aerial 
survey. City Administrator Kress said NRC has budget available. 

• Councilor Watson gave some history that the city used to pay $550-600 per year for 
aerial deer surveys. There was always a photographer and an observer, and they 
always extended the images .25 miles outside of city limits as well. He handled the 
program for approximately 22 years starting in 1992. Trapping would take place in 
January after kids went back to school, regardless of whether there was snow on the 
ground. They would conduct the aerial count the first chance they had the 
opportunity to do so with snow in the background. In some years they did counts 
twice because of removal patterns they would see. The entire population of deer 
was always up in the NE corner of North Oaks. The 2000 period was the first time 
they showed up on the West side of Pleasant Lake Road. As development has 
occurred, they have started to roam.  

• Councilor Hara asked if there is a consensus as a community that we need to 
remove deer? In previous years the number of deer may have been a problem, but 
perhaps not in the last 3-4 years. 

• Chair Hawkins clarified that no, there is not a consensus that deer have to be 
removed. Rather, the NRC wants to make data- based decisions and there is no 
need to remove if the environment can support the numbers. 

• Commissioner Dunn stated that Commissioner Lepoutre’s proposal is worth 
looking into, and wondered if it could also record elevation which could be helpful 
as well. She suggested that the next step would be to contact Ramsey county to see 
if they have an aerial map we could get for free or at a cheaper cost. 

• Commissioner Lepoutre clarified that elevation would be a different type of 
mapping and would not be able to be collected on the type of photographic 
mapping he was suggesting. 

• Councilor Watson suggested that NRC suggest 3 action items to Council: A. Apply 
to the DNR for a permit, if needed, to remove deer; B. Vet potential contractors for 

4



trapping and removing deer; and C. Conduct an aerial survey and make a science-
based decision in consultation with the DNR on if and how many deer should be 
removed.  

• Chair Hawkins noted that there is an ordinance on deer management and Council 
does not need permission from the NRC on deer management, but if they would 
like a recommendation from the NRC, the Commission could certainly make a 
motion and discuss it. 

• Councilor Watson suggested that if a motion is made, that it be kept separate from 
the mapping question because one may take longer than the other, and it would not 
be helpful to have the deer count tied up in figuring out the mapping question if 
deer removal is necessary. 

 
MOTION by Dunn, seconded by Kianian, to contact Ramsey County to see what 
they have for aerial mapping.    

 
MOTION carried unanimously by roll call vote.   
 
MOTION by Hawkins, seconded by White, to advise City Council that the City A. 
Apply to the DNR for deer removal tags if should they be needed; B. Vet qualified 
contractors for deer removal in North Oaks; and C. Conduct an appropriate 
count by a method of Council’s choosing of the deer population in North Oaks. 

 
• Discussion: NOHOA liaison Orud noted that the DNR determines both the 

biological carrying capacity as well as the social carrying capacity of deer in a 
particular area. The DNR specialist will offer guidance on how to determine that for 
North Oaks.  
 

MOTION carried unanimously by roll call vote.   
 

6b.  Discussion on Internship Opportunities 
• Commissioner Dunn introduced the topic. She had an idea that the NRC could host 

unpaid internships for high school students and college students. These internships 
would be for environmentally focused students. The student would be paired with an 
NRC Commissioner who would help guide the student in their work. The experience 
would consist of research, field work, and a written component that could include an 
article in newspaper, North Oaks Living or posts for Facebook. The experience would 
also include a presentation to the NRC. The student could pick a topic of their choice, 
but the NRC could also have a set list of topic ideas such as diseased plants, invasive 
species, pollinators, storm water, surface water, wildlife etc. The work that they do 
would be geared toward the level of the student - high school versus college. 

• Commissioner Dunn noted that the benefit of such a program to students would be the 
real-world STEM experience as well as the writing and public speaking experience. In 
addition, it would help the NRC train the next generation in environmental topics, and 
would help them accomplish some of projects they don’t have time to do. It could also 
help with outreach about environmental topics in the community.  

5



• Administrator Kress shared that he participated in a similar program in high school and 
found it to be a good experience. City Staff member Lauren Kavan also shared that she 
was the former Internship Program Director at Hamline University and would be happy 
to assist with questions about logistics such as hour requirements, recruiting, etc. 

• NOHOA Liaison Orud noted that VLAWMO has student learning opportunities, and 
the NRC may be able to pair with them on such a project. She also asked if the program 
would be limited to North Oaks residents, or if students would be accompanied by a 
North Oaks resident, because there may be some privacy concerns on behalf of 
NOHOA. Commissioner Dunn said she was assuming it would be just North Oaks 
residents because of that issue. City Administrator Kress noted that the NRC could then 
recruit at White Bear schools, Mounds View Schools, and potentially some local 
colleges. Orud noted that the Ag Academy has North Oaks students and they also 
participate in these kinds of internships. 

• Commissioner Kianian said that depending on the level of the student, they may need a 
lot more hands-on support. She wondered if the NRC is available to provide that 
support, or whether faculty would need to be involved. Kress said he believes the NRC 
would provide guidance. Commissioner Dunn also said she was thinking that 
commissioners would provide that role. She said that if the schools are involved, it 
could likely not be limited to North Oaks. She also noted that if only a couple students 
are interested at a time, it might not be too time consuming. Kress agreed that is should 
be limited, and suggested that it be labeled as a mentorship. 

• Councilor Watson said he believed that “trespassing” would be a non-issue, that the 
student would be considered a guest of the member of the NRC who is their supervisor.  

• Chair Hawkins said that until we know how much participation there will be, it doesn’t 
make sense to limit it to residents versus non-residents. He said he likes the idea of 
having an NRC commissioner as a mentor, and that he would enjoy having a hands-on 
role with a student.  

• Commissioner Dunn asked Administrator Kress if there are any city restrictions on a 
program such as this. Kress said that programs such as this are very common, and cities 
like Shoreview, Hugo, etc. all have internships. He suggested that the NRC reach out to 
local schools and limit the number of students to 2-3 a year, or 1 per academic term.  

• Councilor White asked if moving forward would cause any issues with the NOHOA 
board, concerns about privacy. NOHOA liaison Orud noted that when other groups 
have come in, they have always required an escort. Chair Hawkins said he did not think 
that the issue would limit the opportunity. That there could be many ways to work with 
this and have an escort with needed. He believed the NRC could find a way to comply 
with NOHOA policies. Orud said that if there is a contract with the student, and 
NOHOA is a signatory, there may be a way to make it a joint effort and allow some 
autonomy for the student.  

 
MOTION by Dunn, seconded by Hawkins to put together a written proposal on an 
internship program through the NRC for City Council review.  
 

• Discussion: Commissioner Kianian offered to assist. She ran a program like this at 
the University of Minnesota for undergraduates in a research laboratory 

• Councilor Watson and City Administrator Kress suggested calling the program a 
mentorship or fellowship. Kress offered to pull samples from other cities to help. 

6



 
Motion carried unanimously by roll call. 

 
6c.  Discussion on Infected and Diseased Trees 

• City Forester Mark Rehder gave an overview on infected and diseased trees. He 
noted that it has been a busy season with more oak wilt than in the past. There is 
no clear explanation for it. It is most likely spring storm related – even small 
storms can break branches. This is true throughout the Twin Cities. 

• Regarding Dutch Elm disease, there are not many elms left in North Oaks, at 
least not many of significant size. 

• Rehder is noticing an uptick in Emerald Ash Borer. Inspections are just starting 
at this time of year. When leaves come off, you can see the woodpecker damage, 
which is the best diagnostic tool and allows you to look for more signs and 
symptoms. He estimates that there are 35-50,000 Ash trees in North Oaks. He is 
not sure how it will all play out - cold winters helps knock back the ash borer, but 
mild winters allow them to survive. Each lot is dramatically different. He will 
keep up on educating, informing, and giving options to residents with diseased 
trees as far as ordinance suggests. 

• Commissioner White asked if trees are dead or dying, do they provide a habitat 
for birds that are going extinct? Woodpeckers, etc. City Forester Rehder said yes, 
and that there are more trees dying of other things than shade tree diseases. There 
are plenty of other types of dead or dying trees providing habitat for birds. 

• Chair Hawkins said he had been made aware of Oak Mites in states more to the 
south and he wondered if they are an issue. City Forester Rehder said he is not 
aware of any Oak Mite issues in MN 

• Commissioner Lepoutre said he noticed more diseased and dead trees in his area, 
with lots of markings on the trees. He asked what they meant, noting that some 
of them seem to be from NOHOA, some from the City and some from the North 
Oaks Company. He said standardized marking would be helpful. Commissioner 
White seconded Damien’s request. City Forester Rehder confirmed that each 
company has their own system. He prefers to put a mark of paint on diseased 
trees. Sometimes he will hang a ribbon to identify the best spot to enter into the 
conservation area for any tree work that needs to be done. NOHOA liaison Orud 
clarified that the only NOHOA markings to date have been on Pheasant Lane and 
North Oaks Road. They try to coordinate with Rehder to use the same colors for 
same reasons. Orange for removal, green for pruning, both colors together mean 
the homeowner can decide. However, there are some marking that are a little bit 
of a mystery – sometimes they are by the homeowner or a tree company. 

• Chair Hawkins said that maybe it would be useful for the NRC to reiterate what 
NOHOA is doing with educating residents about tree markings, and to encourage 
residents to contact the NRC with questions about ribbon colors, other markings, 
etc. 
 

    6d. Background on NRC Feedback on the Draft Wetland Ordinances 
• Chair Hawkins said he was approached by City Council to ask the NRC for 

feedback on a proposed wetland ordinance. He sent the ordinance out by email, 
but wanted to make sure all commissioners knew about the ordinance and the 

7



opportunity to provide feedback. He encouraged commissioners to look at he 
document and send any feedback if they have not done so already. 

• Chair Hawkins opened the conversation up to questions and discussion on 
whether there is anything the NRC would recommend that Council consider 
doing with the ordinance, what does the Commission think is most important, 
and what are the priorities?  

• Commissioner White asked whether the City has exclusive jurisdiction on 
wetlands, or what other entities are involved. Commissioner Dunn confirmed 
that there are a lot of entities involved. She noted that a lower government 
entity such as the city can enact something that is either as protective or more 
protective or as upper entities. The US Army Corp of Engineers, the State and 
the DNR are all involved. 

• Councilor Hara explained that this all started with a recommendation from the 
DNR. They suggested that having a city level ordinance is easier to monitor and 
reinforce rather than doing so at the DNR level. The City of Minnetonka is an 
example that has an ordinance such as this. The North Oaks ordinance basically 
follows state-level guidance.  

• City Administrator Kress noted that the ordinance classifies wetlands on 
different scales: types 1-6 other than just public water wetlands. 

• Commissioner Lepoutre asked if we just follow state guidelines, why do we 
need a city ordinance? Maybe to make it better known to the community? What 
additional do we want? What is the problem we are trying to solve? 
Commissioner Lepoutre agreed and suggested the city should be careful not to 
overregulate. If the rules already exist at a state level, what would be the benefit 
of having the at a city level? How will definitions change from year to year with 
the impact of climate change? 

• NOHOA Liaison Orud said she recently attended the VLAWMO Tech meeting. 
VLAWMO also gave feedback on the proposed ordinance. They do not have a 
regulatory program, the Wetland Conservation Act regulates, and VLAWMO 
administers that act. Their jurisdiction is below the wetland line. Cities tend to 
focus on a buffer zone which is above the wetland line. Their caveat is that if 
you go into the buffer zone, the wetland line can change. If you go to far, it is 
the illegal taking of a property owner’s property. 

• Councilor Watson clarified that the Wetland Conservation act was enacted in 
1991. This changed how wetlands are handled in Minnesota. Circular 39 from 
the US Department of the Interior is the base document upon all of these 
classifications are done. The goal of the city wetland ordinance is to codify only 
that which is existing law in order to make the regulations clearer and easier to 
navigate. He explained that it is not easy to look up wetland-related ordinances 
because they are currently spread throughout other ordinances. The ordinance 
will include reference to the DNR, state laws, etc. so that as standards and laws 
change, the city ordinance will automatically change as well. These laws will all 
apply to NOHOA, new developments, etc. He believes we also need to take a 
look at enforcement of these matters. For example, there are some situations 
where property owners may be encroaching on setbacks. 

8



• Commissioner Kianian asked if the proposed ordinance is going to replace all 
other ordinances? Councilor Watson said he was not sure if they will replace 
other ordinances, but will help bring them all together. 

• Chair Hawkins asked that Commissioners send any other questions or feedback 
to Kevin and copy him as well. 
  

7. COMMISSIONER / STAFF REPORTS   
7a. Tick Task Force Reports   

• Chair Hawkins said they are moving to a less frequent meeting schedule now that tick 
season is winding down. He submitted an article on the Tick Task Force survey to the 
North Oaks News. They are currently up to 30 respondents.  

 
7b. Community Outreach  

• Commissioner Winsor shared that Chair Hawkins wrote an article on Operation 
Clearview for the North Oaks News. She also announced that her term will be ending 
at the end of December and due to other involvements she will not be seeking renewal. 
She is still interested in serving on the Pesticide Committee and possibly chairing it. 
She also expressed interested in being involved in the internship/mentorship/fellowship 
program. 
 

7c. NOHOA Nest Report 
• NOHOA liaison Orud shared that they planted a Princeton Elm tree at the East Rec 

center. It is disease tolerant, not disease resistant. The preschool is going to name the 
tree.  

• The NOHOA Road study sets out a plan for which roads will be repaired, restored and 
in which year. The front entrance is slated for next year. They are doing an engineering 
study. They are hoping to include the two ponds on either side, and are working with 
VLAWMO on how that would work from an engineering perspective. After that they 
will work with an eco-planner on what the appropriate vegetation is for that area. The 
road study is on the NOHOA website. 

• They are starting a Deep Lake study. Through a clean water legacy grant there is a 
comprehensive Pleasant Lake study that has directed the efforts of NOHOA to work 
their way around the lake to stop erosion, address buckthorn, restore some areas etc. 
Using that model, they are starting next on Deep Lake. 

• They are still waiting to harvest. It is currently too warm. It will happen as soon as 
there is ice. It needs to be cold enough for them to congregate and it has to be the right 
time of year to sell the fish in Chicago and New York. 
 

7d. City Forester Report:    
• See updates in 6c. They are gearing up for the Ash season. City Forester Report was 

included in the October City Council meeting packet. 
 
7e. VLAWMO Tech Committee Report:    

• NOHOA Liaison Orud shared that VLAWMO Tech has put together some proposals 
for Deep Lake for aquatic invasive species removal.  

9



• They talked about 319 project which is Wilkinson, Birch and Tamarack lakes. It is still 
in engineering and planning studies but is supposed to happen in 2022. 

• There was some discussion about terrestrial invasive species Japanese Barberry and 
Oriental Bittersweet. These are going to be a focus in the spring. 
  

7f. City Report:   
• Councilor Watson gave a couple updates on items from last month: On the Wilkinson 

meandering project, a grant has been approved. The amount is in excess of 600,000.  
60% is to be paid by the federal government, 40% has to be a local match. $124,000 of 
this will be covered by the North Oaks Company and the other $124,000 will be paid 
by VLAWMO unless someone else can make a contribution. VLAWMO is soliciting 
funds for their share. Engineering is working with them on details of the plan. Actual 
activity could start toward end of next summer, but it is a 3-year grant. It focuses on a 
canal that goes from the Pines to Wilkinson. This will also be significant to Lino Lakes 
and White Bear Township. 

• City Council needs to approve a budget over the next couple of months. They set an 
initial levy in September and they need to approve or reduce the initial levy in 
December. 

• City Council meets on Wednesday, November 10th due to Veteran’s Day on Thursday, 
November 11th. 

 
Chair Hawkins added that he just received a report of activities from the Metropolitan 

Mosquito Control. They do not do any spraying of adults, all of their control is by larval 
treatments. They had 691 sites inspected and they treated almost 900 acres. For disease 
prevention, they treated 944 catch basins, did 5 disease prevention property inspections, 
and they removed 3 tires. City staff will send this information out to Commissioners. 

 
8. NEXT MEETING: Thursday, November 18, 2021 at 7 p.m.  
 
MEETING ADJOURNED: 
MOTION by White, seconded by Dunn, to adjourn the meeting at 9:19 p.m. 
 
MOTION carried unanimously by roll call.   
  
   

_____________________   _________________   
Kevin Kress, City Administrator    
  

Chair, Andrew Hawkins   

  
Date approved: ____________   

  

 

10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



Table North Oaks Lakes Analyte List

Lake Sampler Temperature Conductivity
Dissolved 
Oxygen pH

Secchi 
Depth

Total 
Phosphorus Orthophosphate Chlorophyll-A

Total 
Kjedahl 

Nitrogen Ammonia

Nitrite 
and 

Nitrate Chloride
Total 

Nitrogen

Surface 
Water 

Elevation

Oxygen 
Reduction 
Potential Iron Manganese Turbidity

Black VLAWMO X X X X X X X X X X X X X
Charley VLAWMO X X X X X X X X X X X X X
Deep VLAWMO X X X X X X X X X X X X X
Gilfillan VLAWMO X X X X X X X X X X X X X X
Pleasant VLAWMO, SPRWS X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X
Wilkinson VLAWMO X X X X X X X X X X X X X X

Notes:
VLAWMO = Vadnais Lake Area Water Management Orgnization
SPRWS = St. Paul Regional Water Services

28



Table North Oaks Lakes Years Sampled

Lake Sampler Years of Data Sampler Years of Data
Black VLAWMO 2009 through 2020 SPRWS No data
Charley VLAWMO 2009 through 2020 SPRWS No data
Deep VLAWMO 2009 through 2020 SPRWS No data
Gilfillan VLAWMO 1997 through 2020 SPRWS No data
Pleasant VLAWMO 2020 SPRWS 2010 through 2021
Wilkinson VLAWMO 1998 through 2020 SPRWS No data

Notes:
VLAWMO = Vadnais Lake Area Water Management Orgnization
SPRWS = St. Paul Regional Water Services

29



North Oaks News:  

Submitted article about Japanese barberry 

Submitted article about NRC Commissioner vacancy 

 

Attended a webinar about zero waste/packaging - I would like to see our City continue with the 

conversations that former Council member Katy Ross initiated with local business owners about phasing 

out the use of polystyrene take-out containers. 

 

30



October Month in Review    

October 2021 

 
• Homeowner calls at @ 87 East Pleasant Lake Rd, 5 Hawk Ln, 23 Oriole Ln, and 63 East 

Pleasant Lake Rd 

• Deadline for removal of diseased oak trees is set at February 1rst, 2022. We will send 

reminder notices in December and re-inspect for compliance starting February 1.  

• Working directly with residents to provide information on invasive species control such 

as Oriental Bittersweet, buckthorn, and Garlic Mustard.  

• Sent out notices with regards to Operation Clearview. Will stop by and visit with 

homeowners if possible/necessary.  

• We have provided copies to City Hall and NOHOA of the spreadsheets we use to 

document diseased trees so that they are available to staff as needed. 

• Ash tree inspections will ramp up shortly as it is easier to diagnose ash trees when they 

do not have leaves.  

• Attended Natural Resource Meeting on October 21rst. 

 

31


	Natural Resources Commission Agenda
	10.21.21 NRC Meeting Minutes - Draft.pdf
	Item 6a. - 2021.11.04_North Oaks Deer Management Packet.pdf
	Item 6b. - Copy of table north oaks surface water data 20211107.xlsx
	Item 7a. - Outreach report.pdf
	October 2021 in Review.pdf

